





To retroactively change the accounting treatment carried on a credit union’s books could cause
the credit union’s balance sheet to suddenly be inflated. The credit union would wind up with
decreased net worth and corresponding potential regulatory capital problems. ACCU requests
that the provision requiring loan participation transactions with recourse shown on an
institution’s books as a sale to be recharacterized as a secured borrowing upon issuance of the
final rule be modified so that it is prospective instead of retroactive. A delayed implementation
would allow institutions time for implementation of the rule, including establishment of an SPE.

ACCU believes that the exposure draft, as currently written, unfairly penalizes credit unions and
other entities in its attempt to control practices that it deems to be outside of the original intent of
SFAS No. 140.

DISCUSSION OF ACCU’S VIEWS

During its deliberations, FASB considered disallowing sales treatment for loan participations
marked by rights of setoff (the common- law right of debtors and creditors to set off — that 1s, net
— amounts due to one another 1f one of the parties defaults, becomes insolvent, or enters into
bankruptcy or receivership.) Based on FASB’s review of the comments, the proposal now does
not stipulate that rights of setoff preclude the use of sales accounting treatment.

In addition, earlier this year FASB had tentatively decided that in order to receive sales
treatment, a loan participation must pass a “true-sale-at-law” test rather than simply receive a
“true-sale-at-law” attorney’s opinion. If the loan participation did not pass the test, then the
financial institution would have been required to use an SPE to transfer the participation. In this
new revised Exposure Draft, FASB opted for the more flexible approach of an attorney opinion
rather than a strict test. Furthermore, the proposal indicates that the originating financial
institution would not necessarily need to obtain a “true-sale-at-law” opinion in every case.
According to the proposal, a “true-sale-at-law’ opinion is not required if the transferring
institution has a reasonable basis to conclude that the appropriate legal opinion would be given if
requested. This would occur where the originating credit union might reach a conclusion
without consulting an attorney if it had experience with other transfers with the same facts and
circumstances.

ACCU believes it 1s important to clartfy when sales accounting treatment 1s approprate and
when secured borrowing treatment is required as well as to clarify the defimition of participating
interest. It 1s ACCU’s understanding the some loan participations in the credit union industry
involve first mortgages and are conducted without recourse. We believe that as the proposal now
stands these credit unions will be able to continue conducting loan participations as they have
done with the added benefit from the provision alleviating them of the burden of obtaining a
true-sale-at law opinion for every participation transaction. This provision would also serve to
lessen the cost of the transaction for loan participation agreements with the same deal structure.

However, ACCU is concerned with the restrictive definition of participating interest in the
proposed Statement. To employ sales accounting treatment, a participation interest could
involve absolutely no recourse or subordination to the originator. This proposed Statement
would effectively eliminate loan participations with recourse as a business product. For the
credit unions that conduct loan participations with recourse, they would be forced to either

601 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. South Bldg » Suite 600 « Washington, D.C. 20004 e Tel.: 202/508-6731  Fax: 202/638-77306

» e-mail: info@theaccu.org



restructure the deal so there is no recourse to the originator, or else run the transaction through an
SPE. We cannot endorse a proposal that could lead to either outcome. The outcome would be to
severely limit this type of transaction.

We strongly urge FASB to modify the definition in the final rule to allow for loan participations
with limited recourse so they may obtain sales accounting treatment as well. This approach
limits the losses that can be borne by the originator while at the same time still allows for
favorable pricing of loan participation deals.

Further, ACCU is also concerned with the effective date and transition provisions in the
proposed Statement. Under the proposal, if a credit union has an ongoing obligation in
connection with a loan participation that does not meet the surrender of control criterion dealing
with isolation (for example, a limited recourse obligation), then when the final Statement is
issued the credit union may be required to reclassify these transactions as secured borrowings
rather than sales. The credit unions that entered into loan participation agreements with recourse
certainly did so with the expectation that they could show the transaction on their balance sheets
as sales. To retroactively change the accounting treatment on the books could cause the credit
union’s balance sheet to suddenly be inflated; and the credit union would wind up with decreased
net worth. Consequently, we encourage FASB to amend this provision so that the rule is
effective prospectively and not retrospectively.

However, if FASB determines that the provision should remain retroactive in the final rule, then
we request a delay in the effective date of the final rule so that credit unions and other
institutions have ample time to implement this provision. Such a delay would also provide
institutions with time to set up SPEs if they so choose.

Entering into loan participation transactions that qualify for sale accounting treatment has
allowed credit unions to effectively serve their members as well as manage their balance sheets
and liquidity needs without impairing their regulatory capital ratios as would be the case if they
were to simply enter into borrowings for their iquidity needs. The presence of a limited
subordination feature that qualifies for sale accounting treatment has allowed credit unions to
receive pricing more commensurate with the credit risk that exists in their portfolios rather than
sell participations in what they believe to be below-market prices. In addition, these transactions
have other benefits to the safety and soundness of credit unions as they result in diversification of
credit risk and geographic risk inherent 1n loan portfolios. We believe the exposure draft, as
currently written, unfairly penalizes credit unions and other entities in its attempt to contro}
practices that it deems to be outside of the original intent of SFAS No. 140.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions you may have.

Sincerely,

Michael F. Canning, Esq., CAE
Executive Director
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